
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:  Monday, 20 June 2016

Committee: 
Pensions Committee

Date: Tuesday, 28 June 2016
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, 

SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached.

Claire Porter
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer)

Members of the Committee:
Thomas Biggins 
Anne Chebsey
Andrew Davies                             
Malcolm Pate

Co-opted Members (Voting):
Malcolm Smith  
David Wright

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith (Pensioner Representative)
Nigel Neat (Employee Representative)
Vacancy (Employee Representative)



Substitute Members of the Committee:
Joyce Barrow (SC)
Roger Evans (SC)
Stuart West (SC)
Michael Wood (SC)
Lee Carter (T&W)   
Adrian Lawrence (T&W) 
Vacancy (Pensioner Rep)  
Vacancy (Employee Rep)

 
Your Committee Officer is: 

Sarah Townsend  Committee Officer
Tel:  01743 257721
Email:  sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Election of Chairman 

2 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

3 Appointment of Vice-Chairman 

4 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting 
on any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should 
leave the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

5 Minutes (Pages 1 - 8)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2016 are attached for 
confirmation, marked 5.

Contact: Sarah Townsend (01743 257721)

6 Public Questions 

To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has 
been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this 
meeting is 5.00 pm on Thursday, 23rd June 2016.

7 Investment Strategy - Next Steps 

Mr Louis-Paul Hill, from Aon Hewitt, will present this item.

8 Policy Update - Pensions Administration Strategy (Pages 9 - 28)

The report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 8.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

9 Pensions Administration Monitoring (Pages 29 - 36)

The report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 9.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)



10 Corporate Governance Monitoring (Pages 37 - 84)

The report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 10.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

11 Exclusion of Press and Public 

To consider a resolution under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to 
Information Procedure Rules that the proceedings of the Committee in relation 
to Agenda Items 12 to 17 shall not be conducted in public on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by the 
categories specified against them.

12 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 85 - 86)

The exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2016 are attached for 
confirmation, marked 12.

Contact: Sarah Townsend (01743 257721)

13 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 87 - 90)

The exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 
13.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

14 Appeals Under The Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (Exempted by 
Category 2) (Pages 91 - 92)

The exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager is attached, marked 
14.

Contact: Debbie Sharp (01743 252192)

15 LGPS Central - Investment Pooling (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 93 - 
242)

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 15.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)

16 Brevan Howard Disinvestment (Exempted by Category 3) (Pages 243 - 246)

The exempt report of Aon Hewitt is attached, marked 16.



Contact: Louis-Paul Hill (0117 900 4440)

17 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 31 March 2016 (Exempted by Category 
3) (Pages 247 - 292)

The exempt report of the Head of Treasury & Pensions is attached, marked 17.

Contact: Justin Bridges (01743 252072)





Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

                 

Pensions Committee

28 June 2016

10.00 am

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 18 MARCH 2016 
10.00 AM - 12.47 PM

Responsible Officer:    Sarah Townsend
Email:  sarah.townsend@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257721

Present: 
Members of the Committee:
Councillor Malcolm Pate (Chairman)
Councillors Anne Chebsey and Andrew Davies 

Co-Opted Members (Voting):
Councillors Malcolm Smith and Arnold England (Substitute) (substitute for Charles Smith)

Co-Opted Members (Non-Voting):
Jean Smith

49 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Thomas Biggins, Charles 
Smith and Mr Nigel Neat.

Councillor Arnold England substituted for Councillor Charles Smith.

Apologies for absence were also received from Councillor Michael Wood (Substitute 
Member).

50 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on 
any matter in which they had a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the 
room prior to the commencement of the debate.  

51 Minutes 

RESOLVED:
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2015 be approved and signed 
by the Chairman as a correct record.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

52 Public Questions 

There were no public questions.

53 Aberdeen Fund Management Ltd (Pan European Property) 

Mr Dominic Delaforce and Mr Tom Richardson gave a presentation on the 
performance of the European Property Portfolio.

In terms of Shropshire’s performance, it was noted that this had been strong over the 
last twelve months, with the portfolio outperforming the long term benchmark and the 
composite index, despite significant transactional activity.  This was partly attributed 
to European Funds performing much better.

It was noted that Shropshire’s Portfolio was now 82% weighted to the UK (excluding 
cash) and that this would continue to grow during 2016 as the strategy was to return 
capital to the UK from non UK European investments.

In respect of the sale of CG Malls Europe, the Committee questioned what the 
position would look like had it been made into a buying opportunity.  Mr Dominic 
Delaforce and Mr Tom Richardson stated that they would provide the Head of 
Treasury and Pensions with the figures.

Finally, it was noted that the priorities in respect of Shropshire’s mandate for 2016 
were to continue to rationalise the UK element of the portfolio, to continue allocation 
of capital to the UK market and to monitor European liquidations and the secondary 
market.

54 BlackRock - Benefits of Diversification 

Mr Simon Betteley and Ms Jo Langton from Blackrock, were in attendance to give a 
presentation on the benefits of diversification.  They explained that diversification 
was about thinking of the outcome and finding a better way to achieve returns with 
less volatility.  

The Committee were shown how different asset classes had behaved in recent 
years, to demonstrate that they had all seen periods of both good and negative 
performance.  This indicated the problems of being invested in a single asset class 
and the conclusion was that by being diversified, investors can not only diversify their 
returns, but also their risk.

55 Investment Strategy and Economic Scenarios 

Mr John Belgrove, Mr Louis-Paul Hill and Mr Mark Jeavons from Aon Hewitt, were in 
attendance to give a presentation on Investment Strategy, Diversification and 
Economic Scenarios.  

The past performance of Shropshire’s Fund was considered along with what had 
driven market performance and the positive and negative factors for the global 
economy.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

Aon Hewitt’s own five year economic scenarios were outlined.  These were designed 
to assess the impact on pension funds’ funding positions.  In addition, and by way of 
an example, the current investment strategy was compared with an alternative 
diversified strategy.

The next steps were then detailed, with strategic asset allocation being of the highest 
importance / impact.  The Committee were informed that the investment strategy 
would be reviewed during 2016 and would take account of funding calculation and 
goals, investment beliefs and a focus on alternatives.

56 Local Government Pension Scheme Central Update 

The Head of Treasury and Pensions gave an update presentation on the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Central Pool.  He explained that Shropshire 
were looking to pool with eight other Funds in the creation of ‘LGPS Central’.  The 
Funds are all based in the Midlands and are working together to create an 
investment pool of around £35 billion.

A copy of the joint submission to Government in response to the DCLG (Department 
for Communities and Local Government) issue of ‘Local Government Pension 
Scheme: Investment Reform Criteria and Guidance’, was circulated to the 
Committee.

It was reported that there would be significant one-off set-up and transition costs but 
that long term savings could be achieved.  In terms of the timescale, liquid assets 
needed to be transferred to pools by 01 April 2018.

The Committee were informed that the LGPS Central Funds had like-minded 
principles with ‘One Fund, One Vote’ being a key feature.  Six of the Funds had 
already worked together successfully on recent passive procurement, which had led 
to significant savings and four Officer Meetings had already been held, with further 
regular meetings planned.

In response to a query, the Head of Treasury and Pensions explained that individual 
Pension Funds would not see a dramatic change.  However, the pool would be 
responsible for making investment manager appointments, although individual Funds 
would retain control over their own strategic asset allocation, utilising managers 
accepted into the pool.  It was reported that the best legal structure for the pool was 
yet to be decided but a clear process would be required around how decisions are 
made and legal advice would need to be sought.  It was currently expected that a 
Board would be set up with one elected Member / Officer from each LGPS sitting on 
the Board to oversee the running of the pool.  The pool could not be ‘all things to all 
Funds’ and therefore some compromise would be necessary.

With regard to Infrastructure, it was explained that the Government was keen to 
encourage the LGPS Funds to increase their weighting in infrastructure and for these 
investments to be in the United Kingdom.  However, the Head of Treasury and 
Pensions commented that investments needed to be suitable and it was essential 
that projects offered acceptable investment returns and risk levels.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

RESOLVED:
Due to the tight Government timetable for responses, certain decisions would need 
to be made prior to the quarterly Pensions Committee meetings.  It was therefore 
agreed that delegated authority be given to the Head of Finance, Governance and 
Assurance (Section 151 Officer), in consultation with the Chairman, to progress this 
work.  Members would be provided with a further update on decisions made at the 
June Pensions Committee meeting.

57 Grant Thornton - Shropshire County Pension Fund Audit Plan 2015/16 and 
Informing the Audit Risk Assessment for Shropshire County Pension Fund 
2015/16 

In respect of 'The Audit Plan for Shropshire County Pension Fund' 2015/16, the 
Committee received the report of the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, (copy 
attached to the signed Minutes) which set out the audit plan for Shropshire County 
Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2016.

Mr Terry Tobin, Senior Manager for Grant Thornton, was in attendance to present 
the report.  He stated that there were no major changes in terms of accounting 
requirements and no significant issues had arisen as a result of the audit.

The Committee confirmed that they were happy with the contents of the report.

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report by the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, be noted.  

In respect of the 'Informing the Audit Risk Assessment for Shropshire County 
Pension Fund' report, the Committee received the report of the External Auditor, 
Grant Thornton, (copy attached to the signed Minutes) which detailed responses 
received from the Council’s Management in respect of a series of questions relating 
to the areas of fraud, laws and regulations, going concern, accounting estimates and 
related party transactions.

Mr Terry Tobin, Senior Manager for Grant Thornton, was in attendance to present 
the report.  He confirmed that he was happy with the responses that had been 
received.  

RESOLVED:
That the contents of the report by the External Auditor, Grant Thornton, be noted.

58 Schedule of Committee and Other Meetings 2016/17 

The Committee received the report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions (copy 
attached to the signed Minutes) which set out a schedule of meetings of the 
Committee and outside bodies on which the Committee was represented.  It also 
identified which managers and advisers would be attending the respective meetings.

The Committee were reminded that Fund managers and advisers were now only 
invited to present at Pensions Committee meetings if there were any issues or 
concerns.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

It was also noted that the next meeting of the Pensions Committee, scheduled to be 
held on 24 June 2016, needed to be cancelled.  Committee Members would be 
advised of the revised date in due course. 

RESOLVED:
(a) That the schedule of Committee meetings for 2016/17, including the Annual 

Meeting, as set out in the report be agreed.   

(b) That the representation at other conferences and training events as set out in 
the report be agreed.

59 Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 2016/17 

The Committee received the report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions (copy 
attached to the signed Minutes) which proposed the Pension Fund Treasury Strategy 
for 2016/17 for the small cash balances that the Administrating Authority maintained 
to manage the day to day transactions of the Fund.  

RESOLVED:
(a) That authority be delegated to the Scheme Administrator (Section 151 Officer) 

to manage the Pension Funds day to day cash balances.  

(b) That the Pension Fund Treasury Strategy be approved.  

(c) That the Scheme Administrator (Section 151 Officer) be authorised to place 
deposits in  accordance with the Pension Fund’s Treasury Strategy.  

(d) That the Scheme Administrator (Section 151 Officer) be authorised to add or 
remove institutions from the approved lending list and amend cash and period 
limits as necessary in line with the Administering Authority’s creditworthiness 
policy.

60 Corporate Governance Monitoring 

The Committee received the report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions (copy 
attached to the signed Minutes) which informed Members of Corporate Governance 
and socially responsible investment issues arising in the quarter 01 October 2015 to 
31 December 2015.

RESOLVED:
That the position as set out in the report, Manager Voting Reports (Appendix A) and 
BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Activity Report 
(Appendix B) be accepted.

61 Pensions Administration Monitoring 

The Committee received the report of the Pension Administration Manager (copy 
attached to the signed Minutes) which provided Members with monitoring information 
on the performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration Team.



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

The Committee were informed that due to the workload of the Pensions 
Administration Team, some agency work arrangements had been put in place.

RESOLVED:
(a) That the position as set out in the report by the Pension Administration 

Manager be accepted.  

(b) That the GMP (Guaranteed Minimum Pension) Reconciliation exercise be 
carried out in line with the HMT (Her Majesty’s Treasury) recommendations 
contained within section eight of the report.

62 Training Requirements 

The Committee received the report of the Pension Administration Manager (copy 
attached to the signed Minutes) which provided Members with an update on the 
training arrangements in place within the Fund and introduced a new Training Policy 
for approval.  The report also covered the training received by Pensions Board 
Members since its introduction on 01 April 2015.  

RESOLVED:
(a) That the Training Policy (Appendix A) be approved.

(b) That the Pensions Regulators eLearning programme be completed by the 
Pensions Committee.  

(c) That the training undertaken so far by the Pensions Board (Appendix D) be 
noted.  

(d) That the Pension Regulators Survey be noted.  (A summary of results could be 
found in Appendix E and a full report could be found in Appendix F).

63 Exclusion of Press and Public 

RESOLVED:
That under paragraph 10.2 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules, 
the proceedings of the Committee in relation to Minutes 64 to 66, be not conducted in 
public on the grounds that they might involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined by the category specified against them.

64 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3) 

RESOLVED:
That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2015 be approved 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

65 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3) 

The Committee received the exempt report of the Pension Administration Manager 
(copy attached to the Exempt signed Minutes) which provided Members with details 



Minutes of Pensions Committee held on 18 March 2016

regarding two admissions under Schedule 2 Part 3 Regulation 1(d)(i) of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.  These admissions were due to 
services transferring from a Scheme Employer under two service contracts.

The report also provided confirmation of a new Schedule 1 Part 1 Scheme Employer 
(Academies) and a new Schedule 2 Part 2 Scheme Employer (Designated Bodies).

RESOLVED:  
That the recommendations in the exempt report by the Pension Administration 
Manager be approved.

66 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 31 December 2015 (Exempted by Category 3) 

The Committee received the exempt report of the Head of Treasury and Pensions 
(copy attached to the Exempt signed Minutes) which provided Members with 
monitoring information on investment performance and managers for the quarter 
period to 31 December 2015, and reported on the technical meetings held with 
managers since the quarter end.

RESOLVED:
That the position as set out in the exempt report by the Head of Treasury and 
Pensions be noted.  

(The full version of Minutes 65 and 66 constitutes exempt information under 
Category 3 of Paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information Rules and has 
accordingly been withheld from publication).

Signed (Chairman)

Date: 





      
Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

28 June 2016

10.00am

POLICY UPDATE - PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY

Responsible Officer Debbie Sharp
e-mail: debbie.sharp@shropshirehire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 

252192
Fax  (01743) 
252184

1. Summary

1.1 The report outlines the requirement to produce and keep updated 
certain Policies under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
legislation and in line with the best practice principles published by the 
Communities & Local Government Department.  This report 
recommends updates to the Pensions Administration Strategy. 

2. Recommendations

2.1 The Committee is asked to approve, with or without comment, the 
revised Pension Administration Strategy at Appendix A. 

REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk management is considered by Committee in making decisions 
under the governance arrangements outlined.

3.2 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 There are no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequences of this proposal.  

3.4 The reviewed policies will be issued to employers and published on the 
Scheme’s website.

4. Financial Implications  

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

mailto:debbie.sharp@shropshirehire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee, 28 June 2016:  Policy Update - PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION STRATEGY

Contact:  Debbie Sharp on (01743) 252192

5. Background
 
Pension Administration Strategy

5.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 enables the 
Pension Fund Administering Authorities to publish a strategy for the 
sole purpose of improving the processes with their Fund. 

5.2 The Shropshire County Pension Fund introduced its Pension 
Administration Strategy in June 2012 and the latest version was 
approved at committee in June 2015.

  

6. Annual Review

6.1 The Administration Strategy Statement has been updated to take 
account of new practices introduced as a result of the embedding 
changes in  legislation from the introduction of the new LGPS last 
year and other relevant legislation. The revised Statement is attached 
at Appendix A

6.2 A consultation has been undertaken with all Fund employers. The 
comments received back have been responded to and changes made 
where appropriate.

6.3 Following approval these documents will be issued to all employers 
and published on the website.   

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information
Pensions Committee, 26 June 2015- Policies update.

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A – Pension Administration Strategy Statement 



Shropshire County Pension Fund

PENSION
ADMINSTRATION
STRATEGY STATEMENT 
To be agreed by Pensions Committee 28 June 2016



Page 2 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

1. INTRODUCTION
Shropshire County Pension Fund (“the Fund”) is 
responsible for the administration of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (“the Scheme”) within 
the geographical area of Shropshire. The Fund also 
administers the Scheme on behalf of a number of 
qualifying employers who are not situated within the 
Shropshire area. The service is carried out by 
Shropshire Council (“the administering authority”) on 
behalf of qualifying employers and ultimately the 
Scheme members.

This document is the Pensions Administration 
Strategy Statement which outlines the policies and 
performance standards towards providing a cost-
effective, inclusive and high quality pensions 
administration service. 

Delivery of such an administration service is not the 
responsibility of one person or one organisation, but 
is rather the joint working of a number of different 
stakeholders which between them are responsible 
for delivering the pensions administration service to 
meet the diverse needs of the membership and the 
regulatory requirements.

2. COMPLIANCE
Developed in consultation with employers within the 
Fund, this statement seeks to promote good working 
relationships, improve efficiency and ensure agreed 
standards of quality in delivery of the pension 
administration service amongst the employers and 
the Fund. A copy of this strategy is issued to each of 
the relevant employers and can be found in the 
employer area of our website.

In no circumstances does this strategy override any 
provision or requirement of the Regulations nor is it 
intended to replace the more extensive commentary 
provided by the Employers’ information on the Funds 
website and guides provided by the Local 
Government Association (LGA)

3. REVIEW
The undertakings set out within this Pension 
Administration Strategy will be reviewed annually by 
the Fund. The Fund will review this policy statement 
and make revisions as appropriate following a 
material change in its policies in relation to any of the 
matters contained in the strategy. Employers will be 
consulted and informed of the changes.

4. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK
Regulation 59-(1) of the LGPS Regulations 2013 
enables an LGPS administering authority to prepare a 
document (“the pension administration strategy”) 
detailing administrative standards, performance 
measures, data flows and communication with 
employers.

In addition, Regulation 70.-(1) of the LGPS 
Regulations 2013 allows an administering authority 
to recover costs from an employing authority where 
costs have been incurred because of that employing  
authority’s level of performance in carrying out its 
functions under these Regulations. See section on 
Poor Performance.

This document has been presented, considered and 
ratified by the Pensions Committee on the 24th June 
2016 and, as such, the contents of which apply to all 
existing and future employers of Shropshire County 
Pension Fund from that date.

5. SCHEME EMPLOYER DUTIES AND 
RESPONSIBLITIES 

The delivery of a high quality, cost effective 
administration service is not the responsibility of just 
the administering authority, but depends on the joint 
working of the administering authority with a 
number of individuals employed in different 
organisations to ensure Scheme members, and other 
interested parties, receive the appropriate level of 
service and ensure that statutory requirements are 
met.

Monthly/Annual Data transfer
The Fund’s preferred method of data collection for 
employee is via iConnect or an agreed alternative. 
It is a Fund intention that all employers are using 
iConnect by March 2018.  
 
Appointing a main contact 
Each Employing authority must designate a named 
individual to act as the main point of contact with 
regard to any aspect of administering the LGPS and 
be responsible for ensuring the requirements set out 
in this strategy are met.

Their key responsibilities will be to:



Page 3 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

 to act as a conduit for communications to 
appropriate  staff within the employer - for 
example, Human Resources, Payroll teams, 
Directors of Finance;

 to ensure that standards and levels of 
service are maintained and regulatory 
responsibility is complied with.

 to ensure that details of all nominated 
representatives and authorised signatures 
are correct and to notify the Fund of any 
changes immediately;

 to arrange distribution of communications 
literature as and when required;

 to inform the Fund of any alternative service 
arrangements required;

 to assure data quality and ensure the timely 
submission of data to the Fund; and

 to assist and liaise with the Fund on 
promotional activities.

Authorised signatories
Each employer must nominate individuals to act as 
authorised signatories whose names and specimen 
signatures will be held by the Pensions and must sign 
all documents or instructions received from an 
employer. In signing a document an authorised 
officer is not merely certifying that the form comes 
from the employer stated, but also that the 
information being provided is correct. 

Consequently if an authorised signatory is certifying 
information that someone else has compiled, for 
example leaving information including a final salary 
pay, career average pay, assumed pay, (s)he should 
satisfy him/herself that the information is correct.

It is the employer’s responsibility to ensure that 
details of the authorised signatures are correct, and 
to notify the Fund of any changes.

Employer Training
The Fund holds annual training for employers where 
its officers provide information on Fund Finances, 
Investment Performance, Regulatory changes and 
also Administration Performance.  Attendance by 
each employer’s main contact and Senior 
Management is actively encouraged. Usually the 
meeting content is communicated so the relevant 

staff can attend. In some instances the training is 
filmed to enable individuals unable to attend to 
watch afterwards. 

Policy Discretions
Each employer is required by statute to prepare and 
publish, a written statement of its policy regarding 
the exercise of certain discretionary functions 
available to them within the LGPS regulations. The 
policy statement must be kept under review and, 
where revisions are made, the revised policy 
statement must be sent to the Fund and made 
readily available to all employees within the 
employing authority within one month of the 
effective date. The LGA has produced a list of 
discretions employers have in the LGPS. The 
document can be found on the website 
www.lgpsregs.org 

Notification of employee’s rights 
Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (IDRP)
Under Regulation 72 of The LGPS 2013 regulations 
any decisions made by an employing authority 
affecting an employee’s rights to membership or 
entitlement to benefits must be made as soon as is 
reasonably practicable and notified to the employee 
in writing including a reference to their right of 
appeal in line with Regulation 73 of the LGPS 
regulations. Every notification must;

 Specify the rights under stage 1 and 2 of the 
appeals procedure quoting the appropriate 
regulations;

 Specify the time limits within an appeal 
under either stage must be made and;

 Specify to whom an application for appeal 
must be made 

o For first stage appeals this must be 
the nominated person of the 
employer who made the decision. 
For second stage appeals this will be 
the appointed person at the 
administering authority

Nominated person 
Each employing authority is required to nominate 
and name the person to whom applications under 
Stage 1 of the Internal Disputes Resolution 
Procedures should be made. The name, job title and 

contact details of this nominated person must be 
kept up-to-date with the Fund. Employers must also 

http://www.lgpsregs.org/


Page 4 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

notify the Fund of any first stage appeals employers 
receive. 

Computer Links
The Fund can provide the links to the Pensions 
Administration System to appropriate large 
employers, in order for employing authority staff to 
produce retirement estimates and enquire on their 
employees’ record of membership. There is a charge 
for this access.  

The Fund will ensure that the Pensions 
Administration System is available for use during 
normal office hours with the exception of any 
necessary scheduled maintenance of the system. 
Employers must notify the Fund when registered 

users leave the organisation or no longer requires 
access.

6. SERVICE STANDARDS TO SCHEME MEMBERS
Overriding legislation dictates minimum standards 
that Pension Schemes and Employers should meet in 
providing certain pieces of information to the various 
associated parties – not least of which the Scheme 
member. The LGPS Regulations also identifies a 
number of requirements for the Fund and Employers, 
which may not have been all covered in this 
document.

Some of these performance standards are held within 
the following tables overleaf but not all:



Page 5 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

NEW APPOINTMENTS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUNDS’ RESPONSIBILITY
To ensure that pensions information is included as 
part of any induction process including in contracts of 
employment and appointment letters.

To provide each new employee with a Brief Scheme 
Guide and New Member Form with their contract of 
employment. This may be in the form of issuing a 
paper copy, or PDF or directing all new members to 
the Funds website where the information can be 
viewed or downloaded. The most up to date versions 
can always be found on our website. Employers 
should ensure that whoever deals with new joiners 
within their organisation is issuing or directing 
members to the latest version of both the New 
Member Form and the Brief Scheme Guide.

Employers must also determine the appropriate 
contribution rate (whether individually or by an 
automated process on payroll) and the employer must 
(as soon as is reasonably practicable) notify the 
employee of the contribution rate to be deducted 
from the employee’s pensionable pay and the date 
from which the rate is payable. It is for the employer 
to determine the method by which the notification is 
given to the employee but the notification must 
contain a conspicuous statement giving the address 
from which further information about the decision 
may be obtained; must notify the employee of the 
right to appeal and including the process and 
timescales involved. To apply the correct employee 
contribution rate according to the scheme the 
member is in – either the 50/50 or 100/100 scheme.  
To alter employee contribution rates at all other times 
in line with the employers’ discretionary policy on 
adjusting employee contribution rates.

To support employers request to attend inductions.  

To update pension information in accordance with 
regulatory changes and to keep PDF versions up to 
date on the Fund website 
www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 
 

NEW STARTERS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUNDS’ RESPONSIBILITY

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/


Page 6 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

To ensure that all employees subject to 
automatic/contractual admission are brought into the 
Scheme from the relevant date, and provide the 
Pension Administration Team, with accurate details 
within 4 weeks of their start date by the agreed 
monthly return format. 

To assist the Fund in ensuring that all new starters 
complete the New Member Form containing 
information including on previous pension schemes 
and personal details such as their National Insurance 
Number, Date of Birth and Home Address. New 
starter information should also be added to the 
agreed monthly return within four weeks of the 
employees first pay date.

Where there is more than one contract of 
employment with the same employer, each 
membership shall be maintained separately and the 
Fund notified as above. 

To send the Fund notification in agreed monthly 
return of any eligible employees subject to automatic 
entry, who opt out of the scheme within three months 
of joining.  

To accurately record and update associated member 
records on the pension administration system.

To apply for any Transfer Value details within two 
weeks of receipt of all the relevant information from 
the member and to produce Membership Certificates 
and forward them to member’s home address, within 
thirteen weeks of joining the Scheme or as stated 
within the Regulations. 

To accurately create member records on the pension 
administration system within four weeks of receipt of 
the notification.    

To accurately record and update member records on 
the pension administration system within four weeks 
of receipt of the documents. 

CHANGES IN CIRCUMSTANCES FOR ACTIVE MEMBERS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To ensure that the Fund is informed of any changes in 
the circumstances of employees on the agreed 
monthly return or on the appropriate form within 
four weeks of the change. Guidance can be found in 
the Employers Guide at: 
www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

Changes include:
Personal Information:

 Change of Name
 Marital Status
 National insurance Number

Conditions of employment affecting pensions: 
 Contractual Hours (mandatory for members 

who meet the underpin requirements only)
 Any remuneration changes due to promotion 

and down grading - pre April 2014 members 
only)

 Full-time equivalent pensionable pay 
according to the Pre 2014 definition

To provide template forms and spreadsheets for 
recording any key changes in circumstance and to 
provide advice on the secure submission of data 
electronically. 

To accurately record and update member records on 
pension administration systems within four weeks of 
notification or any shorter period as requested by the 
employer with regard to specific requirements.

To highlight annually if an individual has exceeded their 
Annual Allowance. 

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/


Page 7 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

 Actual pensionable pay (including 
overtime/additional hours) in 100/100 and 
50/50 Schemes according to the Post 2014 
definition (CARE). 

 Employees Contribution Rate
 Employee Number and/or Post Number
 Date Joined Scheme (if adjusted)
 Confirmation of 50/50 or 100/100 scheme 

entry

NB. An Employee can easily exceed HMRC Annual 
Allowance if their pay increases. You therefore are 
asked to inform the Fund of :

 Augmentation, 
 Honorariums
 AVC contributions

Further information is available from the fund on this 
issue or visit the page on ‘Monthly returns’ on the 
website www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

Absence
During periods of reduced  or nil pay as a result of 
sickness, injury or relevant child related leave  (i.e. 
ordinary maternity, paternity or adoption leave or 
paid shared parental leave and any paid additional 
maternity or adoption leave) Assumed Pensionable 
Pay (APP) should be applied for pension purposes.

Employer contributions should be deducted from pay 
and any APP. If the employee receives no pay the 
employer contributions should still be deducted from 
APP. 

Should an employee wish to purchase Additional 
Pension Contribution (APC) or Shared Cost (SCAPC) 
contract to buy back the pension ‘lost’ during the 
absence, the APP amount will need to be calculated 
and provided to the members employer. Employers 
must bring to the attention of the member before a 
period of absence that they can buy back the ‘lost’ 
pension. Employers should also direct members to 
the website www.lgpsmember.org so they can 
calculate the cost to buy back the ‘lost’ pension. 

Types of absences include: 
 Maternity, Paternity and Adoption
 Paid & Unpaid leave of absence
 Industrial Action (SCAPC not available)
 Any other material/authorised period of 

absence

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/
http://www.lgpsmember.org/


Page 8 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

See section ‘ADDITIONAL PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS  
(APCs) and SHARED COST APC’s’ for further 
information. 

ANNUAL RETURN, VALUATION & ANNUAL BENEFIT STATEMENTS 

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To provide the Fund with year-end information to 31 
March each year in an approved format no later than 
30 April or the next working day.

The information should be accompanied by a final 
statement; balancing the amounts paid during the 
year with the total amounts on the year-end return 
data file together with a compliance statement both  
duly signed by an appropriate officer. 

To provide any additional information that may be 
requested for the production of Annual Benefit 
Statements for service up until the 31st March in each 
particular year by the 30 April each year.

To provide the Fund with up to date and correct 
information as requested in accordance with agreed 
timescales and the regulations. 

To ensure that all errors highlighted from the annual 
contribution and pensionable pay posting exercise are 
responded to and corrective action taken promptly. 

To process employer year end contribution returns 
within three months of receipt i.e. 30th April, or 
within three months of receipt of the information if 
later.

To produce annual benefit statements for all active 
members by 31st August and to provide Annual 
Allowance information by the 5th October each year. 

Statements will also be produced for deferred 
members, but no information from employers will be 
required. Employers must ensure that all leavers are 
notified to the pension’s team. 

To provide data to the Fund Actuary and Government 
Actuary’s Department to enable employer 
contribution rates to be accurately determined.

To provide an electronic copy of the valuation report 
and contributions certificate to each employer. 



Page 9 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

RETIREMENT, TRANSFER,DIVORCE  ESTIMATES / OUT SOURCINGS  etc

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To submit a request using forms PEN010 by post or 
attaching it to an e-mail.

For larger bulk estimates, requests can be made in 
alternative agreed formats.

To provide pay and other relevant data as requested 
and provided in the format requested at the time 
either on an individual or group basis for;
 Employee requests e.g. Transfer requests, divorce 

requests, retirement.
 Actuary Requests  e.g. Triennial Valuation, 

FRS17/IAS 19
 Staff transfers e.g. Outsourcings etc.

To issue the individual quotations within seven 
working days of receiving the request or by separate 
agreed timescales for bulk requests.

To provide large employers links to the appropriate 
software to produce retirement estimates without 
the resource of Fund staff. (Employers should note 
there is a charge for this access).

ACTUAL RETIREMENTS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To submit the appropriate PEN007 form to the Fund 
as soon as the information is available. The PEN007 
form must be completed fully as it confirms the 
information required to enable the benefits to be 
calculated and the employer’s decision as to the type 
of benefit is to be paid to member. Evidence of the 
calculation of final pensionable pay is preferred so the 
Pensions Team can check the accuracy of the pay 
provided. If not provided the PEN007 form would be 
returned if it appeared to be incorrect. 

Further information can be found in the Employers 
Guide via www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

To issue the member with a letter and benefits 
information within seven days of employer’s 
notification.

To make payment of any lump sum within seven 
working days of receipt of all relevant forms and 
certificates  from the member, if later than 
retirement date.

To pay any pension payment on the 29th of each 
month into the bank, following retirement, unless 
this falls on a weekend or bank holiday when the 
payment will be made on the last working day before. 

ILL HEALTH RETIREMENTS 

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/


Page 10 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

To determine whether an ill health award is to be 
made, based on medical evidence and the criteria set 
in the current LGPS regulations after obtaining an 
opinion from a Fund approved Independent Medical 
Registered Practitioner (IMRP) on the appropriate 
certificate. If an award is made, to then determine 
which tier 1, 2 or 3 is to be awarded.

Arrange for completion of the PEN007 and then 
submit to the Fund with all related paperwork.  

To keep a record of all Tier 3 ill health retirements, 
particularly in regard to arranging the 18 month 
review. Arranging if necessary with an (IMRP) 
approved by the Administration Authority for a 
further medical certificate. To recover any 
overpayment of pension benefits following a 
discovery of gainful employment and notify the Fund, 
where appropriate.

To review all Tier 3 ill health retirement cases prior to 
discontinuance at three years. Further information on 
Ill health retirements can be found on the employers 
pages on our website 
www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

To calculate and pay required benefits in line with 
actual retirement timescales.

To assist the employer in performing their legislative 
responsibility to review Tier 3 ill health cases at 
eighteen months.

MEMBERS LEAVING EMPLOYMENT BEFORE RETIREMENT 

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To notify the Fund using the Leavers Form 
PEN007 form of the employee’s date and 
reason for cessation of membership and all 
other relevant information on approved forms 
within four weeks of the event at the latest.

To accurately record and update member records on the 
pension administration system.

To inform members who leave the Scheme, who are not 
entitled to immediate payment of benefits, the options 
available and deferred benefit entitlement within one month 
of receiving all relevant information.

FORMER MEMBERS WITH DEFERRED BENEFITS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To keep adequate records of the following for 
members who leave the Scheme with 
deferred benefits as early payment of benefits 
may be required:

 Name & Last known address
 National Insurance Number
 Payroll Number

To record and update member records on pension 
administration system.

To provide former members, where possible, an annual 
benefit statement of their deferred benefits updated by 
accrued annual pensions increase awards.

To provide estimates of benefits that may be payable and any 

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/


Page 11 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

 Date of Birth
 Last job including job description
 Salary details 
 Date and reason for leaving

To determine, following an application from 
the former employee to have their deferred 
benefits paid early, as to whether or not they 
are eligible for early payment on ill health 
grounds in line with the criteria set in the 
relevant regulations and after seeking a 
suitable medical opinion from an (IMRP) 
approved by the Administering Authority or to 
determine whether benefits should to be 
released early and in some cases any actuarial 
reduction waivered on compassionate 
grounds.

resulting employer costs within seven days of request.

DEATH IN SERVICE & TERMINAL ILLNESS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To inform the Fund immediately on the death 
of an employee, or when a member is 
suffering from a potentially terminal illness 
and provide details of next of kin.

Further information can be found on the 
employers pages of our website 
www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

To assist employers, employees and their next of kin in 
ensuring the pension options are made available and that the 
payment of benefits are expedited in an appropriate and 
caring manner.

FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUNDS RESPONSIBILITY
To pay the Fund all contributions deducted 
from payroll (not including AVCs) of its 
employees and employer contributions and 
any deficit Lump Sum payments due on a 
monthly basis, no later than the 19th day of 
the month following the period of deductions. 
Further information can be found in the 
Employer Guide via 
www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

Each payment must be accompanied by  the 
agreed monthly statement  providing; 

 the breakdown of the payment, at 
employee level (if not using iConnect).

 Employee 100/100 (main scheme) 

To allocate the received contributions to each employers 
record. 

Interest may be charged for late payment in the following 
circumstances; 
 Employer contributions (including deficit payment) are 

overdue if they are received a month later than the due 
date specified.

 All other payments are overdue if they are not received 
by the due date specified.

Inform each employer of any new contribution bandings 
tables.

Inform employers of any rechargeable items as they become 
due.

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/
http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/


Page 12 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

contributions
 Employee 50/50 scheme contributions
 Employee additional contributions
 Employer contributions
 Employer SCAPC contributions
 Deficit payment 

To pay all rechargeable items to the Fund on 
receipt of the invoice. Benefits will not 
commence until the invoice is paid. 

ADDITIONAL PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS  (APCs) and SHARED COST APC’s (SCAPCs)

EMPLOYERS’ RESPONSIBILITY FUND’S RESPONSIBILITY
To communicate to employees regarding the 
option of SCAPC’s to cover periods of ‘lost 
pension’ and the timeframe they must elect to 
purchase a SCAPC. Members must elect within 
30 days of returning to work following the 
absence but employers have the discretion to 
extend this period.  

To calculate and collect from the employee 
payroll contributions and to arrange the 
prompt payment to the Fund, according to the 
published schedule and to be no later than the 
19th of the month following deduction. More 
information can be found in the Employers 
Guide on  
www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk 

To provide information on APCs to members/employers 
through www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk where a 
modeller can be found. 

http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/
http://www.shropshirecountypensionfund.co.uk/


Page 13 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

STANDARDS OF DATA
Overriding Legislation in performing the role of 
administering the LGPS, The Fund and Employers 
will comply with the overriding legislation, 
including: 

 the Occupational Pensions Schemes 
 (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 

2015;
 The Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 
2015

 the Pensions Act 1995,  2004 and 2014;
 any Transitional Regulations currently in 

place;
 the Discretionary and Compensation 

Regulations 2006;
 the Data Protection Act 1998;
 the Freedom of Information Act 2000;
 the Disability Discrimination Act 1995;
 the Age Discrimination Act 2006;
 the Finance Act 2004; 
 Health and Safety legislation;
 Employment Rights Act 2010;
 HMRC Legislation and Current GAD Guidance
 Public Service Pensions Act 2013

and any future amendments to the above 
legislation.

Data Protection
To protect any personal information held 
electronically the Administering Authority is 
registered under the Data Protection Act 1998. This 
allows members to check that their details held are 
accurate. The Fund may, if it chooses, pass certain 
details to a third party, if the third party is carrying 
out an administrative function of the Fund. 
Members who wish to apply to access their data on 
data protection grounds should contact the Data 
Protection Officer on: (01743) 252774 

Shropshire Council is the Administering Authority for 
the Shropshire County Pension Fund and is registered 
with the Information Commissioner’s Office as a Data 
Controller. 

Your information is processed for the sole purpose of 
administering your pension and your personal details 
will be retained. 

The Fund may, if it chooses, pass certain details to a 
third party, where the third party is carrying out an 

administrative function of the Fund or where we are 
legally obliged to do so. 

Members who wish to see a copy of information held 
about them by the Shropshire County Pension Fund 
should make a subject access request under the Data 
Protection Act 1998 to the Information Governance 
Team at Shropshire Council. For details ring 01743 
252774 or 01743 252179, email information; 
governance@shropshire.gov.uk or visit the website 
at: www.shropshire.gov.uk 

Secure Data Transfer
The Fund will follow Shropshire Council’s data security 
guidelines when sending any personal data in bulk, 
including its published data sharing policy. This means 
that if data is shared:

 We will agree an authentication process and 
confirm that it is an appropriate person and 
contact number in the receiving organisation. 

 Encryption software will be used, which will 
be self-extracting, and allow the recipient to 
open the file, 

 Without the need for the software, it should 
be password protected and we will follow 
delivery guidelines if the data is sent by 
courier.

 The appropriate agreed person will confirm 
the data has been received, request the 
password and confirm the file is successfully 
opened.

The full guidelines can be made available on request.   

mailto:governance@shropshire.gov.uk


Page 14 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

8. FUND ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE 
MEASURES
In 

PERFORMANCE                                     TARGET                                        
MEASURE                                          (WORKING 
                                                                    DAYS)

Payment of retirement                       7 DAYS
benefits

Payment of monthly pensions           1 DAY
on the appropriate day 
of the month

Payment of transfer values                7 DAYS

Provision of inward transfer               10 DAYS
quotes
Notification of deferred                       30 DAYS
benefits

Respond to members                            5 DAYS                              
general postal / email/
telephone enquiries

All these measures start from the date of receipt of all 
relevant information. The annual figures for the 
Fund’s performance measures across all employers 
are recorded in the Annual Report.

Audit
The Fund is subject to an annual audit of its processes 
and internal controls. Employers are expected to fully 
comply with any requests for information from both 
internal and approved external auditors. Any 
subsequent recommendations will be considered and 
where appropriate implemented with Employing 
authority cooperation.

Benchmarking
The Fund will regularly monitor its costs and service 
performance by benchmarking with other 
administering authorities. Details of the costs of 
administration, quality measures and standards 
of performance will be published in the Annual 
Report.

9. EMPLOYER PERFORMANCE REPORTING
As part of this Pensions Administration Strategy the 
Fund will develop, with employer consultation, 
arrangements for quarterly reporting on key 
performance measures as contained in section 6 of 

this document

This approach to reporting will facilitate early 
engagement with employers and also provide a 
mechanism for service level review and recognition of 
best practice.

Poor Performance
The Fund will seek, at the earliest opportunity, to 
work closely with employers in identifying areas of 
poor performance, provide the necessary training and 
development and to put in place appropriate 
processes to improve the level of service in the future.

In the event of continued poor performance and a 
lack of any evidence of any measures being taken to 
achieve improvement by an employing authority, the 
Fund will seek to recover any additional costs arising.

Any third party costs or regulatory fines incurred by 
the Fund as a consequence of administrative failures 
or poor performance by the employing authority will 
be recovered from the employer. These may include 
fines imposed by the Courts, the Pensions 
Ombudsman or the Pensions Regulator and additional 
charges in respect of actuarial fees, third party 
computer charges and additional printing and 
distribution costs.

In dealing with poor performance the Fund will:
 write to the employer setting out the area 

(s) of poor performance;
 meet with the employing authority, where 

possible, to discuss area(s) of poor 
performance and how these can be 
addressed;

 issue formal written notice, where no 
improvement is demonstrated by the 
employing authority or where there has 
been a failure to take agreed action by the 
employing authority;

 Make claim for cost recovery, taking account 
of time and resources in resolving the 
specific area(s) of poor performance.

 Will report any claim for the cost of recovery 
to the Pension Committee at the next 
available meeting and may form part of the 
administration report in the Fund’s 
published Annual Report.

Reporting Breaches 

The Fund has a procedure to be followed by certain 
persons in relation to reporting breaches of the law 



Page 15 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

to the Pensions Regulator. The breaches procedure 
applies, in the main to; 

• all members of the Shropshire Pension 
Board;
• all officers involved in the management of 
the Pension Fund including members of the 
Treasury Team and Pensions Administration 
Team, and the Head of Finance, 
Governance3 and Assurance (Section 151 
Officer);
• any professional advisers including 
auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund 
managers; and
• officers of employers participating in the 
Shropshire County Pension Fund who are 
responsible for Local Government Pension 
Scheme matters.

Breaches can occur in relation to a wide variety of the 
tasks normally associated with the administrative 
function of a scheme such as keeping records, 
internal controls, calculating benefits and making 
investment or investment-related decisions.

If a breach needs occurs the breaches policy must be 
followed. The most up to date breaches policy can be 
found on the Funds website. 

If a breach occurs by an employer the Fund will notify 
the employer to ensure improvements are made and 
will record and monitor the breach. 
If this failure to comply with the regulations is likely 
to be of material

10.      ASSOCIATED POLICY STATEMENTS 

The statement outlines the Fund’s policy on:
  Information to members, representatives 

and employers;
 The format, frequency and method of 

distributing  such information;
 The promotion of the Scheme to prospective 

members and their employing authorities

Governance Policy
Shropshire Council has delegated to the Pensions 
Committee various powers and duties in respect of 
its administration of the Fund. 

This statement sets out the scheme of delegation and 
the terms of reference, structure and operational 
procedures of the delegation. It also includes 

information on how it will exercise certain discretions 
provided by the scheme. 

Employer Discretions
Since 1997, the LGPS Regulations have required 
every employing authority to:

 issue a written policy statement on how it 
will exercise the various discretions provided 
by the Scheme;

 keep it under review;
 revise as necessary.

A list of the Employer discretions can be found on 
www.lgpsregs.org 

The Fund has purchased a template to assist 
employers when making their policy. A copy of the 
template can requested from the Pensions Team.

11. Regulations Extracts

Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 
2013: Regulation excerpts related to Exchange 
of information

80. — (1) A Scheme employer must—
(a) Inform the appropriate administering authority of 
all decisions made by the employer under regulation 
72 (first instance decisions) or by an adjudicator 
appointed by the Scheme employer under regulation 
74 (applications for adjudication of disagreements) 
concerning members; and
(b) give that authority such other information as it 
requires for discharging its Scheme Functions
(2) If—
(a)an administering authority makes any decision 
under regulations 72 (first instance decisions), 75 
(decisions of the adjudicator) or 76 (reference of 
adjudications to administering authority) about a 
person for whom it is not the Scheme employer; and 
(b) information about that decision is required by 
the person’s Scheme employer for discharging that 
employer’s Scheme functions, that authority must 
give that employer that information if asked to 
supply it.
(3) Within three months of the end of each Scheme 
year, each Scheme employer must give a statement 
to the appropriate administering authority giving the 
following details in respect of each employee who 
has been an active member during the Scheme 
year—
(a) the employee’s name and gender;

http://www.lgpsregs.org/


Page 16 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

(b)the employee’s date of birth and national 
insurance number;

 (c) a unique reference number relating to each 
employment in which the employee has been an 
active member; and (d) the information relating to 
the employee for the Scheme year in question for 
each employment which is specified in paragraph (4).
(4) The information required by paragraph (3)(d) is—
 (a)the dates of active membership;
 (b)the pensionable pay received and employee 
contributions deducted while regulation 9  
(contributions) applied;
 (c)the pensionable pay received and employee 
contributions deducted while regulation 10 
(temporary reduction in contributions) applied;
 (d)any contributions by the employer in relation to 
the employee’s pensionable pay;
 (e)any contributions by employee or employer 
under regulation 16 (additional pension 
contributions);
 (f)any contributions by employee or employer under 
regulation 17 (additional voluntary contributions).

Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 
2013: Regulation excerpts related to Pension 
administration strategy

59. — (1) An administering authority may prepare a 
written statement of the authority’s policies in 
relation to such of the matters mentioned in 
paragraph (2) as it considers appropriate ("its pension 
administration strategy") and, where it does so, 
paragraphs (3) to (7) apply.
(2) The matters are—

(a) procedures for liaison and communication 
with Scheme employers in relation to which 
it is the administering authority ("its Scheme 
employers");

(b) the establishment of levels of performance 
which the administering authority and its 
Scheme employers are expected to achieve 
in carrying out their Scheme functions by—

(i) the setting of performance targets,

(ii) the making of agreements about levels of 
performance and associated matters, or

(iii) such other means as the administering 
authority considers appropriate;

(c) procedures which aim to secure that the 
administering authority and its Scheme 
employers comply with statutory 

requirements in respect of those functions 
and with any agreement about levels of 
performance;

(d) procedures for improving the 
communication by the administering 
authority and its Scheme employers to each 
other of information relating to those 
functions;

(e) the circumstances in which the administering 
authority may consider giving written notice 
to any of its Scheme employers under 
regulation 70 (additional costs arising from 
Scheme employer’s level of performance) on 
account of that employer’s unsatisfactory 
performance in carrying out its Scheme 
functions when measured against levels of 
performance established under sub-
paragraph (b);

(f) the publication by the administering 
authority of annual reports dealing with—

(i) the extent to which that authority and its 
Scheme employers have achieved the levels 
of performance established under sub-
paragraph (b), and

(i) such other matters arising from its pension 
administration strategy as it considers 
appropriate; and

(g) such other matters as appear to the 
administering authority after consulting its 
Scheme employers and such other persons 
as it considers appropriate, to be suitable for 
inclusion in that strategy.

(3) An administering authority must—
(a) keep its pension administration strategy under 

review; and

(b) make such revisions as are appropriate 
following a material change in its policies in 
relation to any of the matters contained in the 
strategy.

(4) In preparing or reviewing and making revisions to 
its pension administration strategy, an administering 
authority must consult its Scheme employers and 
such other persons as it considers appropriate.
(5) An administering authority must publish—

(a) its pension administration strategy; and

(b) where revisions are made to it, the strategy as 
revised.



Page 17 of 17
SHROPSHIRE COUNTY PENSION FUND

Pension Administration Strategy Statement
June 2016 

(6) Where an administering authority publishes its 
pension administration strategy, or that strategy as 
revised, it must send a copy of it to each of its Scheme 
employers and to the Secretary of State as soon as is 
reasonably practicable.
(7) An administering authority and its Scheme 
employers must have regard to the pension 
administration strategy when carrying out their 
functions under these Regulations.
(8) In this regulation references to the functions of an 
administering authority include, where applicable, its 
functions as a Scheme employer.





      
Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

28 June 2016

10.00am

Committee and date
Pensions Committee

28 June 2016

10.00am

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION MONITORING REPORT

Responsible Officer Debbie Sharp
Email: Debbie.sharp@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 252192 Fax: 01743 255901

1. Summary

1.1 The report provides Members with monitoring information on the 
performance of and issues affecting the Pensions Administration Team.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report. 

  
REPORT

3. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management 
Performance is considered and monitored to ensure regulatory 
timescales and key performance indicators are adhered to.  
Administration risks are identified and managed and are reported to 
committee on an annual basis.

3.2 Human Rights Act Appraisal
The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 Environmental Appraisal
There is no direct environmental, equalities or climate change 
consequence of this report.

3.4  Financial Implications
Managing team performance and working with other Administering 
Authorities ensures costs to scheme employers for Scheme 
Administration are reduced.  However, it must be noted that the 
introduction of the 2014 LGPS and the increased governance being 
introduced by the Public Services Pension Act 2013 will increase the 
resources required by the administration team. Reconciling the Funds 
Guaranteed Minimum Pension Liabilities with HMRC will have a direct 
cost for the Fund but if this is not undertaken the Fund risks taking on 



Pensions Committee; 28 June 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
financial liabilities it didn’t need to and having its data called into 
question by the Fund Actuary. LGPS having to fully index GMP’s will 
increase costs for the Fund going forward.

4. Performance and Team Update

4.1 The team’s output and performance level to the end of May 2016 is 
attached at Appendix A.  

4.2 You will see that Tasks which became due have risen considerably 
during May. This is due to notification of new starters and leavers 
through iConnect. As previously reported, iConnect is increasing the 
number of changes/cases being identified on a monthly basis rather 
than the Pension’s Team having to identify and then collect missing 
data during year the end process as usually happens.

4.3 The team are currently prioritising workloads to ensure all records are 
processed and at the correct member status in readiness for the data 
to be sent to the Scheme Actuary for the 2016 Valuation.  This means 
all leavers, transfers and aggregation of records to 31 March 2016 
need to be processed by the end of June.

4.4 The posting, to each individual member’s record, of contributions, 
CARE pay and pay for Final Salary Benefits also has to be completed 
for the Valuation Data extract.  Due to the introduction of iConnect for 
Shropshire Council & Telford and Wrekin Council and monthly returns 
for all other employers, this has been a much smoother process than in 
previous years.  Data cleansing is currently being undertaken.  Reports 
are being worked on to ensure all active records hold all the relevant 
data.

4.5 Test Valuation Extracts have been run and data already provided to the 
Actuary for some preliminary discussions to take place.  Actual data is 
scheduled to be provided around the end of June.

5. Help Desk Statistics

5.1 The following chart shows the number of queries received through the 
helpline number. 

Feb 2016  Mar 2016 April 2016
Telephone calls 
received 689 754 844

Queries dealt 
with by 
helpdesk at first 
point of contact 
%*

98.98% 90.32% 91.95%

Users visiting 
the Website  Not available** 2217 2825



Pensions Committee; 28 June 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
 * Where queries have not been dealt with by helpdesk, this will usually mean 

that the calls have been picked up by the rest of the team.

**Support for the website is provided to the team by Shropshire Councils web 
team. This includes providing access to google analytics to track website 
statistics. In September 2015 it had come to the Funds attention that the 
website statistics were not being recorded correctly. This issue was raised 
with the web team and has been an intermittent issue until February 2016 
when the web team were able to fix the problem. During this period (Sept 15– 
Feb 16) the Funds statistics may have been affected due to a configuration 
issue.

            
6 Communications

6.1 Annual Benefit Statements 2016
Since the introduction of the 2014 Scheme Annual Benefit Statements 
have to now be issued by 31 August each year. The Annual Benefit 
Statements for deferred members are currently being worked on and 
the statement artwork, along with the accompanying newsletter, is 
being produced as a joint project with 7 other Funds. Members will be 
informed that next year’s statements will be issued electronically via the 
Fund website, unless they opt to continue to receive a paper copy of 
the statement. The deferred benefit statements are currently scheduled 
to be issued at the end of July 2016. This may slip as recently it has 
been announced that the negative revaluation is to be applied to the 
deferred benefits and software will need to be updated to cope.

6.2 Annual Benefit Statements for active members will be issued securely 
via the Fund’s website unless members request a paper copy. 
Members can view their statement and print a copy via Member Self 
Service. An email will be sent to all users of Member Self Service once 
the statements are available. Any members who have yet to register for 
this service will be sent an activation key. The notes pages to 
accompany this year’s statement have recently been assessed by the 
Plain English Campaign and their comments, to ensure the notes are 
easy to understand, are being worked on. The notes pages will be 
uploaded to Member Self Service for members to view. 

6.3 Annual Report 
Work is underway to prepare the Funds Annual Report for 2015/16.  
Regulation 57 of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Administration) Regulations 2013 sets out the requirement for and the 
content of the Fund’s Annual Report. In preparation of the report the 
guidance issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) is followed. The report will be submitted for 
approval at the September 2016 Pensions Committee meeting. 

6.4 Retired Members Meeting 
The Annual Retired Members Meeting is being held on Wednesday 29 
June 2016 in the Council Chamber at the Shirehall, Shrewsbury. Along 
with a Fund update there are guest speakers from Affinity Connect; 



Pensions Committee; 28 June 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report
covering financial planning, and West Mercia Police; on how members 
can protect themselves from Fraud. As usual the Pensions Team will 
be on hand to answer any questions from attendees. 

6.5 Members Training Day 
The Annual Members training day is taking place on 28 July 2016. The 
training day will provide training for both Pension Committee and 
Pension Board members. The agenda for the meeting is currently 
being prepared and will be circulated to the Committee once available. 

6.6 Employers Discretions Policy 
Regulation 60 of the Local Government Pension Scheme regulations 
2013 state that a Scheme employer must prepare a written statement 
of its policy in relation to the exercise of its functions under the 
regulations and share a copy with the administrating authority before 
1st July 2014. In May 2016 the Fund wrote to the employers who it 
believed had not yet published a discretions policy. Following this 
exercise a total of a further 10 discretion polices have been received 
therefore the total number of policies still outstanding is 39. Employers 
have been asked to provide a policy by the 30 June 2016 and if after 
this date, an employer fails to comply with the Regulations, and it is 
likely to be of material significance it must be reported as a breach to 
the Pensions Regulator. 

7. GMP – Reconciliation

7.1 As previously reported following the end of contracting out in April 
2016, HMRC will be sending a statement to all individuals affected 
stating the amount of COPE (Contracted Out Pension Equivalent) they 
will receive and who is responsible for paying for it.  Ahead of this, 
HMRC is advising that schemes should reconcile the GMP values they 
hold for members with those calculated by HMRC or face making 
overpayments to existing members and even individuals for whom they 
believe they have no liability.  

7.2 The second stage of this project is currently being undertaken by ITM 
Ltd.  

8 CARE Pension Revaluation

8.1 Please note the Government did get the agreement of the House of 
Commons and the House of Lords for the negative revaluation to be 
applied the LGPS CARE pension pots.  It was also agreed however, 
that Pensioners who retired during 15/16 will not see a reduction in 
their benefits as this would have caused an Authorised Payment under 
HMRC rules.

9. New GAD Factors

9.1 On 29th April, the following pieces of revised guidance were issued by 
DCLG:



Pensions Committee; 28 June 2016: Pensions Administration Monitoring Report

 Individual transfers 
 Pension Credits on Divorce 
 Pension debits on divorce 
 Pensioner cash equivalents on divorce 
 Early retirement 
 LTA and limit on total amount of benefits 
 Scheme pays/ Annual Allowance 
 Trivial commutation 
 Interfund transfers 
 Purchase of Additional Pension 
 AVC conversion to Additional Pension 
 Inverse commutation 
 Flexible Retirement 

Further guidance, including transitional and late retirement guidance is 
still awaited and some processing is having to be backlogged until this 
is received.

10 Consultation on Amendment Regulations

10.1 On Friday 27th May, DCLG commenced a consultation on draft 
amendment regulations for the LGPS in England and Wales. Amongst 
other amendments, the consultation covers Fair Deal and changes to 
AVC provisions in light of the recent Freedom and Choice reforms. The 
consultation document is available under Drafts and Consultations on 
www.lgpsregs.org and on Gov.uk. http://lgpsregs.org/index.php/dclg-
publications/dclg-stat-guidance.  The consultation closes at 12.00am 
on 20th August 2016 (effectively on the evening of Friday 19th August).

10.2 A response will be sent to the consultation by the Fund officers.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)

Pensions Committee Meeting 18 March 2016 Pensions Administration Report 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
NA

Local Member
NA

Appendices
Appendix A – Performance Monitoring

http://lgpsregs.org/index.php/dclg-publications/dclg-stat-guidance
http://lgpsregs.org/index.php/dclg-publications/dclg-stat-guidance




Appendix A

A
pr-13

Jun-13
A

ug-13
O

ct-13
D

ec-13
Feb-14
A

pr-14
Jun-14
A

ug-14
O

ct-14
D

ec-14

Feb-15
A

pr-15
Jun-15
A

ug-15
O

ct-15
D

ec-15

Feb-16
A

pr-16
Jun-16

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Tasks Which Became Due

Procedures Outstanding at end of Month

Outstanding Excluding Checking

Number of Procedures Processed 0n 
Time

Procedures Completed

Procedures Processed On Time In Office 
P384

Total Processed In Office P384

Terminated Procedures P383

Task Statistics

Month

N
um

be
r o

f T
as

ks





     Committee and Date

Pensions Committee

28 June 2016

10.00am

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MONITORING

Responsible Officer Ed Roberts
e-mail: ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  (01743) 252078 Fax  (01743) 255901

1.  Summary

1.1 The report is to inform members of Corporate Governance and socially 
responsible investment issues arising in the quarter 1st January 2016 to 31st 

March 2016. 

2.  Recommendations

2.1 Members are asked to accept the position as set out in the report, Manager 
Voting Reports at Appendix A and BMO Global Asset Management 
Responsible Engagement Overlay Activity Report at Appendix B.

REPORT

3.  Risk Assessment and Opportunies Appraisal

3.1 Risk Management is part of the Pension Fund’s structured decision-making 
process by ensuring that investment decisions are taken by those best 
qualified to take them.

3.2 The recommendations contained in this report are compatible with the 
provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998.

3.3 The Fund’s Corporate Governance Policy enables it to influence the 
environmental policies of the companies in which it invests.

3.4 There are no direct Equalities or Community consequences.

4.  Financial Implications

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

5.  Background

5.1 The Shropshire County Pension Fund has been actively voting for over fifteen 
years at the Annual General Meetings and Extraordinary General Meetings of 
the companies in which it invests. Voting is carried out by individual Fund 
Managers on all equity portfolios.

mailto:ed.roberts@shropshire.gov.uk


Pensions Committee, 28 June 2016: Corporate Governance Monitoring

5.2 The Fund is also addressing its social responsibility through a strategy of 
responsible engagement with companies. BMO Global Asset Management 
provide this responsible engagement overlay on the Fund’s UK equities 
portfolio.

6.  Manager Voting Activity

6.1 Details of managers voting activity during the quarter relating to equity 
portfolios are attached (Appendix A).

7.  Responsible Engagement Activity

7.1 During the last quarter BMO Global Asset Management have continued to 
actively engage with companies on the Fund’s behalf. An update on the 
engagement activities for the quarter is attached at Appendix B in the REO 
Activity report.  

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information)
Corporate Governance Monitoring report, Pensions Committee 18 March 2016

Cabinet Member
N/A

Local Member
N/A

Appendices
A. Manager Voting Activity Reports.
B. BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports.










































































































































	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	8 Policy Update - Pensions Administration Strategy
	8.  Appendix A Pension Administration Strategy Statement

	9 Pensions Administration Monitoring
	9.  Appendix A Performance Monitoring

	10 Corporate Governance Monitoring
	10.  Appendix A Manager Voting Activity Reports (January - March 2016)
	10.  Appendix B BMO Global Asset Management Responsible Engagement Overlay Reports (January - March 2016)

	12 Exempt Minutes (Exempted by Category 3)
	13 New Admission Bodies (Exempted by Category 3)
	14 Appeals Under The Internal Disputes Resolution Procedure (Exempted by Category 2)
	15 LGPS Central - Investment Pooling (Exempted by Category 3)
	15.  EXEMPT - Appendix A LGPS Central Business Case
	15.  EXEMPT - Appendix B Investment Pooling Presentation to s151 Officers & Chairs 24 May 2016
	15.  EXEMPT - Appendix C Master Summary of Savings for Shropshire
	15.  EXEMPT - Appendix D Shropshire Summary Savings 8 June 2016

	16 Brevan Howard Disinvestment (Exempted by Category 3)
	17 Investment Monitoring - Quarter to 31 March 2016 (Exempted by Category 3)
	17.  EXEMPT - Appendix A Investment Monitoring Report to 31 March 2016


